
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, February 5, 2014 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the January 8, 2014 Meeting 

3. Certified Survey Map – 801 Bushnell Street – First Congregational Church 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit 

4. Certified Survey Map – 1601 Gateway Boulevard  
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
1601 Gateway Boulevard in the City of Beloit 

5. Zoning Map Amendment – 2508 Milwaukee Road 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning district classification from C-1, Office District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions 
District for the property located at 2508 Milwaukee Road 

6. Conditional Use Permit – 1420 Division Street – Vehicle Repair 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle 
repair in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1420 
Division Street 

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

8. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  January 31, 2014 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
MINUTES 

BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, January 8, 2014  
The Forum, Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM.  Gail Riddle called the 
roll. Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Kelly, Ruster, Nee, and Kincaid.  
Commissioner Moore arrived at 7:06 PM.   
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the December 18, 2013 Meeting 
Commissioner Nee moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 
Minutes of the December 18, 2013 Meeting. The minutes were approved (5-0). 
 

3. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Related to the Public Lands and Institutions 
District 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to create Section 5-
102(a)(15) and to amend Section 5-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the 
Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, relating to the Public Lands & 
Institutions (PLI) district uses and standards. 
  
Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Faragher opened and closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Daniel Barolsky, 1301 Chapin Street, Beloit College Professor and president of Little 
Turtles Playhouse was present for questions.  
 
Commissioner Kincaid asked for clarification on how the children would be dropped 
off.  Mr. Barolsky answered that the parents could park right across the street on 
Church Street and carry the child across the street or park in the First Congrational 
Church parking lot and there would be a gate and fence to walk through.   The 
Commissioners discussed a variety of issues with the applicant related to how the 
daycare would operate at this location. 
 
Commissioner Nee moved to approve the Zoning Ordinance Amendment and 
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion.  The motion carried (6-0). 
 



Page 2 of 4 

 

4. Certified Survey Map – 801 Bushnell Street – First Congregational Church  
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit 
 
Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Nee asked why the coach house was being excluded from 627 Church 
Street.  Ms. Christensen commented that it was her understanding that is how the 
church wanted it.  Mr. Barolsky commented that the church wanted to retain it for 
storage, and the daycare had no need for it. Commissioner Nee suggested that it made 
sense that the coach house would go along with the lot because if the building ever 
reverted back to a single family residential, that building would operate as a garage for 
the property. 
 
Mr. Barolsky stated that he was a little uncomfortable suggesting the re-arrangement 
of the line without the church’s voice, but was willing to put this on hold until someone 
from the church could be present.     
 
Commissioner Ruster moved and Commissioner Nee seconded a motion to lay the 
Certified Survey Map over because of concerns in reference to the coach house.  The 
motion carried (6-0). 
 

5. Certified Survey Map – 4003 S. Walters Road 
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
4003 S. Walters Road in the Town of Beloit 
 
Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Kelly asked what would be going on the property.   
 
Bob Luenberger, RH Batterman, 2857 Bartells Drive, was present for questions.  Mr. 
Luenberger commented that it may be used for a future expansion of that business.   
 
Commissioner Nee moved and Commissioner Kelly seconded a motion to approve the 
Certified Survey Map.  The motion carried (6-0). 
 

6. Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Various Properties Located on North and Sixth 
Street near the Beloit Memorial High School campus 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning district classification from R-1B, Single Family Residential District, and R-2 
Two-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District for the 
properties located at 219 and 225 North Street; and 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, 1257 
1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349 and 1353 Sixth Street 
 
Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Janelle Morotz, Executive Director of Business, School District of Beloit, was present for 
questions.  Ms. Morotz commented that the property on the 1200 block of Sixth Street 
were all vacant and future use plans of those properties would allow them to expand 
their field and/or parking lot area and that the other side would be for athletic use 
expansion.    
 
Commissioner Kincaid asked if the School District had plans to purchase the remaining 
properties.  Ms. Morotz answered that they did not at this time. 
 
Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Kincaid asked if the school district would be required to provide 
landscaping for any parking lot additions.  Ms. Christensen answered that they would. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved and Commissioner Nee seconded a motion to approve 
the Zoning Ordinance Amendment.  Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The 
motion carried (6-0). 
 

7. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Relating to Nonconforming Uses and Structures 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an Ordinance to repeal and recreate 
Sections 9.1.1 and 9.1.2 and to amend Sections 9.1.4, 9.2.1(A) and 9.2.2.(E) of the 
Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, 
relating to nonconforming uses and structures 
 
Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 
Ms. Christensen explained that the sole purpose of this was to get the City compliant 
with state law.  After some discussion about the requirements for state law 
Chairperson Faragher opened and closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Nee asked about the nonconforming use provision of the ordinance.  Ms. 
Christensen explained that the change in state law applied to nonconforming 
structures only and that the City’s nonconforming use provision would still be in place. 
 
Commissioner Moore moved and Commissioner Jacobsen seconded a motion to 
approve the Zoning Ordinance Amendment.  The motion was carried (6-0) 
 

8. Conditional Use Permit – 1029 Fourth Street – Vehicle Repair 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle 
repair in a C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1029 
Fourth Street 
 
Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Chairperson Faragher opened the Public Hearing. 
 
The applicant and future owner of the business was present.  He stated that he would 
like to open this business but does not want to store cars there because he also owns 
the business across the street which has enough room for 20 cars. He added that he 
wants to use this building for mechanical maintenance use in the building.  
 
Chairperson Faragher closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Commissioner Nee commented that he would want to add a requirement for a fence 
around the property.  He indicated that he felt it was important to screen this use from 
adjacent residential uses.  He went on to say that he thought the fence should not be 
allowed be chain-link or chain-link with slats. 
 
Commissioner Nee made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit subject to the 
amended conditions and to add a fence requirement on the north, south and east sides 
of the property which was not chain-link or chain-link with slats.  Commissioner 
Ruster seconded the motion.  The motion carried (6-0).  
 

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen stated that the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zoning for the 
new school on Milwaukee Road was approved.   
 
The Conditional Use for the Ironworks south was approved. 
 
The developers for the tax credit have decided not to move forward. 
 

10. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 8:25 PM. 



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2014-02

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: First Congregational Church Location: 801 Bushnell Street

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District & Wellhead Overlay

Existing Land Use: Church & Vacant
Structure

Total Area: 1.496 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 801 Bushnell Street. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the
Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City where there is no
dedication of land to the City.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to separate the existing, vacant church-owned building addressed as 627 Church

Street from the remainder of the parcel in order to convey this parcel to a day care operator. The structure located at
627 Church Street was once on a separate parcel, but was combined with the church campus at some point. The
structure was most recently used as the church’s resale shop, but has been vacant for many years.

 Proposed Lot 1 is 10,597 square feet in area and includes 66.41 feet of frontage on Church Street, and will be formally
reassigned the 627 Church Street address. Proposed Lot 2 is 54,584 square feet in area and includes the remainder of
the church campus, with frontage on Church Street, Bushnell Street, and Park Avenue.

 At the request of Planning staff, the City Council recently adopted changes to the permitted use, minimum lot area, and
minimum lot width standards in PLI districts that will allow the proposed CSM to be signed and recorded. Proposed
Lots 1 & 2 are subject to the minimum lot area and lot width standards applicable in the adjacent R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District (8,750 square feet and 50 feet, respectively). Both proposed lots meet these standards.

 The structure located at 627 Church Street is a contributing structure in the College Park Historic District. Planning
staff opposed the church’s 2010 request to demolish the structure, and urged the church to commission a CSM and to
convey the structure for rehabilitation as an alternative to demolition. If the proposed CSM is approved, Lot 1 will
remain in the historic district and Lot 2 will remain an Individual Historic Landmark.

 Following the Plan Commission’s initial review of the proposed CSM on January 8, 2014, the applicant revised the
proposed CSM by redrawing the boundaries of Lot 1 to include the coach house.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential, including supportive institutional uses, for the subject
property. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The preservation and enhancement of historic structures reduces

dependence upon fossil fuels by capitalizing on the embodied energy that is present in these structures.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street.
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2014.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution.



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street



February 5 Staff Report 3, CSM, 801 Bushnell Street

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 801 BUSHNELL STREET

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City
of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of
the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within
the jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 801
Bushnell Street, containing 1.496 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of
Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

Lots 1, 2, 13, 14, 15, 16 and part of Lots 3 and 12 of Block 21 of the Original Plat of
the City of Beloit made by John Hopkins, being all a part of the N.W. ¼ of the S.W.
¼ of Section 36, T. 1 N., R. 12 E. of the Fourth P.M., City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located at 801 Bushnell Street, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street.
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31,

2014.

Adopted this 5th day of February, 2014.

__
James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2014-03

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: City of Beloit Location: 1601 Gateway Boulevard

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Total Area: 44.04 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision
Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City
where there is no dedication of land to the City.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to subdivide this City-owned property into a northern parcel that will be rezoned to

allow business park development and a southern parcel that will remain open space in order to provide a buffer
adjacent to the Eagles Ridge subdivision.

 Once the proposed CSM has been approved and recorded, Planning staff will initiate an amendment to the
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map and a Zoning Map Amendment for both proposed lots.

 Proposed Lot 1 is 35.443 acres in area and includes 2,153 feet of frontage on Gateway Boulevard. Proposed Lot 2 is
8.599 acres in area and includes 288 feet of frontage on Gateway Boulevard.

 Any future development on proposed Lot 1 will need to account for the significant change in grade.
 Both proposed lots meet the relevant minimum lot width and minimum lot area standards.
 The City Engineer has reviewed the attached CSM and has requested that each lot be limited to one driveway.
 The City’s other Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Neighborhood uses for the subject properties, although Planning staff
will be initiating an amendment to recommend Business Park and Parks & Open Space uses once the proposed CSM has
been recorded. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. Access to Gateway Boulevard shall be limited, and each lot may only have one driveway on Gateway Boulevard,
unless additional driveways are authorized during Site Plan Review.

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2014.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: Proposed Lot 1 is listed for sale and will be sold for business park development.

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution.



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard



February 5 Staff Report 4, CSM, 1601 Gateway Boulevard

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1601 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City
of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of
the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within
the jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1601
Gateway Boulevard, containing 44.04 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the
City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard, subject to the following conditions:

1. Access to Gateway Boulevard shall be limited, and each lot may only have one driveway on
Gateway Boulevard, unless additional driveways are authorized during Site Plan Review.

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31,
2014.

Adopted this 5th day of February, 2014.

__
James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: ZMA-2014-01

Applicant: School District of Beloit Owner: School District of Beloit Location: 2508 Milwaukee Road

Current Zoning: C-1, Office District
Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands
& Institutions District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residential, Rental

Total Area: 1.7421 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from C-1, Office District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the property located at 2508
Milwaukee Road.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding
area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: R-1A, Single-Family Res. District & R-2, Two-Family Res. District; Single- and Two-Family Dwellings
 South: PLI, Public Lands/Institutional; Single-Family Res. and Vacant Land
 East: PLI, Public Lands/Institutional; Single-Family Res. and Vacant Land
 West: C-1, Office District; Church Campus

The subject property is located in the WPO, Wellhead Protection Overlay District and MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay
District. These overlay districts will not be affected by this proposed Zoning Map Amendment. The Zoning Ordinance
directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map Amendment when
the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant recently acquired the subject property with the intent of constructing a new intermediate school,

along with parking lots, athletic fields, and related facilities. In December 2013, three neighboring properties were
rezoned to PLI and the Future Land Use Map was amended to reflect this intent.

 The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Institutional & Community Service uses for the
subject property.

 The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate major public and quasi-public uses.
 If the request to rezone the subject property is approved by the City Council, the applicant will need to submit

detailed site & architectural plans for Planning staff review and approval.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has

not received any comments.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in

Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 The proposed PLI district and school campus are compatible with the medical offices to the
east and the church campus to the west.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject property will be an expansion of the PLI zoning district to the east. The uses

allowed in the PLI zoning district are compatible with the uses in the surrounding C-1 zoning
districts.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
and

 The subject property is suitable for the uses permitted under the existing zoning
classification.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The properties located at 2554, 2570, and 2600 Milwaukee Road were rezoned to PLI on

January 6, 2014. The Milwaukee Road corridor has experienced increased development
pressure during the past few years, including the recently opened medical office and several



commercial developments are under construction in the 2700 & 2800 blocks of Milwaukee
Road. In addition, several businesses in the industrial park along Office Park Lane and
Kennedy Drive have recently expanded and more will be expanding within the next year.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional & Community Service uses for the subject property. This proposed
Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin
Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from C-1, Office District,
to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the property located at 2508 Milwaukee Road.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.













CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: CU-2014-02

Applicant: William Eggers Owner: William & Michelle Eggers Location: 1420 Division Street

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Vacant Building Total Area: 0.8688 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
William Eggers has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle repair in a C-3, Community
Commercial District, for the property located at 1420 Division Street.

Key Issues:
 This property currently has two buildings on site. The applicant plans to demolish the front (east) building and

convert the back building into a full-scale repair shop. The applicant has combined the subject property at 1420
Division Street with the adjacent lot, 1412 Division Street, to allow for a planned addition to the south side of the
building. Vehicle repair is a conditional use in a C-3 district.

 Various site renovations have been proposed, including the addition of garage doors to the building, updating the
façade, and the creation of a parking lot and landscaping. Site Plan Review will be done upon approval of this
permit.

 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and the underlying zoning of the
surrounding area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: C-3, Community Commercial District; Mini Warehouse
o South: C-3, Community Commercial District; Landscaping Sales/Services
o East: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Residential
o West: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Residential

 Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance requires vehicle repair uses to provide 4 off-street parking stalls per
service bay. Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will require the applicant to provide a
minimum of 20 parking stalls.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have the following comments:
o Engineering has concerns about the development of the site. These issues will be addressed during Site

Plan Review. Engineering has no issue with the proposed use.
o Alliant Energy would like sufficient notice given from the applicant prior to demolition of the front building

to disconnect the gas and electric facilities.
o No other comments or concerns were submitted.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to 17 nearby property owners. Staff has received one comment from a
neighbor concerning storm water management for the site. This will be addressed during Site Plan Review.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Subject to certain conditions of approval and Site Plan Review, the proposed conditional use
will not be detrimental to or endanger public health, safety, or welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding property uses.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the

neighborhood of the subject property;
 The occupancy and improvement of the subject property is expected to have a positive

impact upon property values in the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development

and improvement of the surrounding property;
 The establishment of the conditional use will not impede nearby development, so long as the

site is repaired/upgraded as recommended by staff.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar



or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed site layout changes will be a positive enhancement of the site. Planning staff
will review any exterior alterations during the Architectural Review process to ensure
compatibility with the neighborhood.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The existing street network is capable of handling any additional traffic generated by the
conditional use.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial Uses for the subject property. Consideration of this
request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow vehicle repair in
the C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 1420 Division Street, based on the above Findings of
Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes vehicle repair within the existing rear building, but vehicle repair may not
occur outside of the building.

2. Junk vehicles (as defined in Chapter 7) shall not be stored outside.
3. Vehicles may not be sold on site unless the applicant obtains an auto dealer’s license from the State of

Wisconsin.
4. The applicant shall provide at least 20 parking stalls and shall stripe the lot in accordance with Section 8-112 of

the Zoning Ordinance.
5. Prior to issuance of Building Permits for this project, the applicant shall submit detailed site & architectural plans

for Planning staff review and approval.
6. The applicant shall work with Alliant Energy concerning the disconnection of the gas and electric facilities prior to

demolishing the front building.
7. The front building shall be demolished by August 1, 2014.
8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Site Sketch, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Memo.





Back Building to be Renovated
Front Building to be Demolished














